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Kerala State Handloom Development 
Corporation Limited, Kannur. 

NOTICE FOR FIFTY FOURTH ADJOURNED ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
Notice is hereby given that the 54th Adjourned Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of 

Kerala State Handloom Development Corporation Limited will be held on Saturday the 18th March 2023 
at 03:30 P.M at Jawaharlal Nehru Public Library & Research Centre, Yogasala Road, Kannur - 
670 001 to transact the following business. 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 
1 To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statement of the Corporation for the year ended 31st 

March 2022, including the audited Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2022, the Statement of Profit 
& Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors' and the 
Auditors' thereon. 

Place : Thiruvananthapuram 
Date : 07.02.2023 

By Order of the Board, 
Sd/- 

Arun Augustine 
Company Secretary 

Note : 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote

instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the company. The proxies in order to
be effective must be received by the company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

2. The 54th Adjourned  Annual General Meeting is now being held for consideration and adoption of  the
audited Financial Statement of the Corporation for the Financial Year 2021-22 along with the Report
of the Statutory Auditors, Report of the Directors, Reply to Statutory Auditors comments, Comments
of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, as required under the provisions of Companies Act
2013.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
To the Members

Your Directors are pleased to present the Fifty Fourth Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company
and the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022.

As you are well aware the main objective of the Corporation is the upliftment and promotion of handloom industry
in the State which has a long tradition of excellent craftsmanship.  Realizing the need for bringing about viable changes
in the living conditions of the handloom weavers, Government have introduced several promotional schemes for the
upliftment of weavers.

The economic environment continued to be hostile during the year under review. Concerns over growth, inflation
and capital investment resulted in under performance by core industrial sectors; this had a direct bearing on the
business of your Company. Stiff competition from powerloom industry is causing concern on the increase of turnover of
the Company and indeed measures are taken to meet the challenges and also the performance of the Company.
THE YEAR IN RETROSPECT

During the year, sales turnover decreased by 48.89% from Rs.1952.77 lakhs in 2020-21 to Rs.997.97 Lakhs in
2021-22. The loss for the year 2021-22 was Rs.1016.92 Lakhs as against Rs.503.09 lakhs during 2020-21. Your
Company has recorded a production of  Rs.1090.10 Lakhs during 2021-22 as against Rs.1133.60 lakhs during 2020-21.
The reduction for decrease in the operation happened due to the after effect of Covid-19 Pandemic.

Your Company has completed 54 years in the year 2022 and is striving hard to reach the breakeven profit.
As on 31-03-2022 the Corporation has 36 showrooms running directly and 02 exclusive agency showrooms.

During the year 2013, Govt.have introduced wearing of handloom dress by Govt. servants on every Wednesday for
promoting the handloom sector in the State of Kerala.

The Company has provided loan of Rs.129.41 lakhs to various Weavers’ Co-operative Societies and subsidiary
Company Kerala Garments Ltd. under Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

The Company has no contracts or arrangement with related parties as referred in 188(1) of the Companies Act
2013.

Particulars
Revenue from operations 844.62 1866.92
Other Income 467.14  360.28
Total revenue 1311.76 2227.20
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 374.84 280.14
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress -331.99 163.24
Employee benefits expenses 921.87 850.48
Finance costs 193.01 191.02
Depreciation & amortization expenses 12.34    11.68
Manufacturing, Administration & selling expenses 1158.61 1233.73
Prior period items (net) NIL         NIL
Total expenses 2328.68 2730.29
Profit before Tax (PBT) (1016.92) (503.09)
Profit after tax (PAT) (1016.92) (503.09)

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital and Paid-Up capital of the Company as on 31-03-2022 stood at Rs.50,00,00,000/- and

Rs.49,66,00,000/- respectively.
KERALA GARMENTS LTD

Consequent to the reconstitution of the KGL Board in compliance with G.O (Rt) No. 1552/2017/ID dated:13-10-2017
the pending accounts of Kerala Garments limited for the period from 2009-10 to 2019-20 have been audited and the
audited Financial Statements were placed in theBoard and approved, which is also placed before the Annual General

(R in lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

PERFORMANCE OF KSHDC
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Meetings of shareholders and adopted. Further the audit of accounts of KGL for the year 2020-21 have also been
completed and the audited Financial Statements were placed in the KGL Board dated: 09-05-2022 and approved. As
per G.O (Ms) No.15/2011/ID Dated:18-01-2011, direction was given to transfer the land and building of KGL to Hanveev.
Accordingly vide letter dated: 25-03-2021 request was made to the Principal Secretary, Industries © Department for
waiving the Stamp Duty, Registration Fee and other Government expenses in this regard consequent to which the
Government vide orders dated: 22-11-2021 and 23-11-2021 had exempted Hanveev from payment of Stamp Duty,
Registration Charge in connection with the transfer of land and building owned by Kerala Garments Limited to Hanveev.
The matter was also placed before the KGL Board in its meeting dated: 09-05-2022 wherein decision was made to
convene an Extra Ordinary General Meeting for passing a Special Resolution in connection with the transfer of assets
and liabilities of KGL to Hanveev. Accordingly Extra Ordinary General Meeting was convened on 15-07-2022 wherein a
Special Resolution was passed authorising KGL Directors to execute all documents and deeds in connection with
transfer of KGL assets and liabilities of Hanveevand accordingly necessary forms were filed with RoC in this regard.

HANVEEV PROCESSING HOUSE, CHIRAKKAL AND OTHER DYE HOUSES
The Company’s Processing Unit at Chirakkal & Kalliasseri are performing well.

WELFARE MEASURES TO WEAVERS
Various weaver welfare measures like House-cum-work shed Scheme, Contributory Thrift Fund and Additional

Production Incentive are being perused and it is the endeavour of the Corporation to continue these measures in the
coming years also. The Corporation is also implementing State Government scheme under which unemployed women
are provided with Looms and given training in weaving at Panchayath Level with an aim for ensuring them continuous
employment and wages.

Government is also earmarking various amounts for increasing the productivity of looms and for the welfare of the
weavers as a whole.
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013.

In accordance with the section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, the following particulars are included herewith.
1. The Board of Directors of the Company have met 06 times during the year 2021-22.
2. The Directors affirm that –
a) In the preparation of the Financial Statements, the applicable accounting standards had been followed alongwith

proper explanation relating to material departures;
b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the Financial Year and of the Financial Statements of the Company for that period.

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) The Directors had prepared the Financial Statements on a going concern basis; and
e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
DIRECTORS

The Government vide G.O (Rt) No.1000/2021/ID dated:16-09-2021 had given full additional charge to
Sri.K.S.Pradeep Kumar, Director of Handlooms & Textiles  as Managing Director of the Corporation and accordingly he
has taken over the charge of Managing Director on 17-09-2021. Further to this the Government vide G.O (Rt) No.1193/
2021/ID dated: 29-10-2021 conveyed the appointment of Sri.Binu.K, Under Secretary, Finance Department as Director
of the Corporation. However, his directorship was taken on record consequent to his allotment of DIN w.e.f 18-11-2021.

10
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Further the Government vide G.O (Rt) No.1326/2021/ID dated:  07-12-2021 had appointed Sri.T.K.Govindan Master as
the Chairman of the Corporation and he has taken over the charge of Chairman of the Corporation w.e.f  14-12-2021.
Further to this the Government vide G.O (Ms) No.24/2022/ID dated:10-03-2022 conveyed the appointment of
Sri.Arunachalam Sukumar as Managing Director of the Corporation and he has taken over the charge of Managing
Director on 23-03-2022.

The Company has no Independent Director within the meaning under Section 149(6) of the Companies  Act  2013
as on 31.03.2022.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There were no employees  who were in receipt of remuneration within the limits prescribed under section 134 (3)
(Q) of the Companies Act  2013. Hence the particulars as required to be disclosed under Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules 1975 are ‘NIL’.
RESERVES

During the year, the Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.
DIVIDEND

Since there is no profit for 2021-22, no dividend is declared.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING/OUTGO

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under report and expenditure in foreign currency
was NIL during the year under report. Also, there was no conservation of energy, technology absorption during the year
under report.
EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT DATE

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred
between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and date of the report.
HUMAN RESOURCE DETAILS (As on 31-03-2022)
Employee category No. of persons

employed
Officers 17
Clerical 123
Skilled 03
Semi-skilled 17
Unskilled 17

 Total 177

Your Company follows participative style of management with frequent communication meetings between the
Management and Trade Unions/Officers Associations. Company had harmonious industrial relations throughout the
year and it will be the endeavour of your Company to continue to maintain the good industrial climate.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance for the Company means achieving high level of accountability, efficiency, responsibility,
fairness and transparency in all areas of operations.  Our workforce is committed towards the protection of the interest
of the weavers, stakeholders including shareholders, creditors, investors, customers, employeesetc.

Company follows the best Corporate Governance practices found on the principle of  transparency.The Board
of Directors of the Company as on 31-03-2022 comprises 7 Directors including the Chairman out of which 4 are official
Directors.

11
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The compliance by the Company of all Statutory and Regulatory requirements has been prompt and up to date.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Internal Audit is conducted by outside Chartered Accountants. The Internal Auditors checks the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control system through regular audits, system reviews and monitors compliance of various
policies and procedures. Functioning of Internal Audit and adequacy of internal control system is reviewed at Board
level.

The Company has well placed proper and adequate systems of internal control covering all financial and operating
functions.
RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2005

Kerala State Handloom Development Corporation is a front-runner in implementing the Right to Information (RTI)
Act 2005 and has embraced the Act in true letter and spirit.An Appellate Authority, a Public Information Officer and
Asst.Public Information Officers are functioning as part of the Right to Information Group.

To assist and facilitate the citizen in obtaining information, details have been placed on the Company’s website,
spelling out the procedure for securing access to information and filling first appeal under the Act.Instructions have been
issued to administrative units to ensure compliance to the mandatory requirements of the Act. KSHDC’s journey in
adopting RTI as a tool of transparency also helps in improving efficiency of system and processes.

12

*Sri.K.S.Pradeep Kumar, Director of Handlooms & Textiles (DH&T),  had taken over the full additional charge of Managing
Director of the Corporation with effect from 17-09-2021 (date of taking over of charge)in compliance with the Government
OrderG.O (Rt) No.1000/2021/ID dated: 16-09-2021.
*Sri.Binu.K, UnderSecretary, Finance Department was appointed as Director with effect from 18-11-2021 (date of
allotment of DIN) in compliance with the Government Order G.O (Rt) No.1193/2021/ID dated: 29-10-2021.
*Sri.T.K.Govindan Master, was appointed as the Chairman of the Corporation with effect from 14-12-2021 (date of
taking over of charge) in compliance with the Government Order G.O (Rt) No.1326/2021/ID dated:07-12-2021.
*Sri.Arunachalam Sukumar was appointed as the Managing Director of the Corporation w.e.f 23-03-2022 (date of  taking
over of charge) in compliance with the Government Order G.O (Ms)No.24/2022/ID dated: 10-03-2022.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD
The Composition and category of the Directors along with their attendance at Board Meetings during the year

ended 31st March 2022 are as given below:

Name of Director

1. Sri.K.P.Sahadevan

2. Sri.Sudhir.K

3. Sri.Murali.S

4. Sri.Ubaidulla A.C

5. Sri.V.G.Raveendran

6. Sri.Mangode Radhakrishnan

7.Sri.K.S.Pradeep Kumar*

8.Sri.T.K.Govindan Master*

9.Sri.Binu.K*

23-04-2021 19-05-2021 26-10-2021 11-02-2022 11-03-2022 26-03-2022

10.Sri.Arunachalam Sukumar*

Present Present

Present Present

Present Present Present Present Leave of
Absence Present

Present Leave of
Absence

Leave of
Absence Present Present Present Leave of

Absence Present

Present Present Present Leave of
Absence

Leave of
Absence

Leave of
Absence
PresentPresentPresentPresent

PresentPresentPresent

PresentPresentPresent

Present
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RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005
Details as on 31-03-2022
No. of application received -   44
No. of applications replied -   43
No. of appeals received - 18
No. of appeals replied - 18

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As the Company has not earned profit during the year under Review, Corporate Social Responsibility is not adopted

till now.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee of the Company comprises 3 Directors as on 31-03-2022.Statutory Auditors are invitees to all
meetings of the Committee and the Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013.

Audit Committee discharges the functions laid down in the Companies Act 2013 apart from discharging those
functions delegated by the Board of Directors from time to time. Audit Committee has been closely overseeing and
monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and procedures, and audit functions including
follow up and compliance of audit reports and interaction with the Auditors.

Audit Committee acts as an effective tier to the Board in the matter of audit and internal control systems and offers
useful suggestions in the conduct and management of the business of the Company.

AUDITORS
The Comptroller and Auditor General of India have appointed M/s George & Regi Chartered Accountants as

Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2021-22.

INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE

The Company has got an Internal Complaint Committee for looking into the complaint under sexual harassment
against women employees with the requirements of “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013.”

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
Your Directors wish to convey their gratitude and appreciation to all of the Company’s employees for their tremendous

personal efforts as well as their collective dedication and contribution to the Company’s performance. The Directors
would also like to thank the employee unions, shareholders, customers, dealers, suppliers, bankers, Government and
all other business associates for their continued support extended to the Company and the Management. Directors also
thank the Comptroller & Auditor General of India and all well-wishers for their encouragement and support.

Board gratefully acknowledges the valuable and timely advices, guidance and support received from time to time
from the Government of Kerala.  The Directors also acknowledge the services of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors.
The Directors express their gratitude to various Institutions and Agencies for their continued support.

Place : Thiruvananthapuram
Dt      :  17-11-2022

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
 T.K.Govindan Master

Chairman

13



1014

Kerala State Handloom Development Corporation Limited, Kannur.

39th Annual Report & Accounts 2006-07

For Kerala State Handloom Development
Corporation Ltd., Kannur

Place : Thiruvananthapuram
Date  : 17.11.2022

Sd/-

 Managing Director

ADDENDUM TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2021-22
Reply to the statutory Auditor’s Comments on the Accounts of the Corporation for  the year 2021-22

ANNEXURE–A

4. Proper records relating to utilization of grants/loans sanctioned under various Project package
Schemes are available in different production centres through which the payments under the
schemes had been released to the beneficiary weavers and it is utilized for the purpose for
which it is granted.

5. Provision is made for leave encashment based on the Balance Sheet date
6. Noted the direction of Auditors and it will take care with the approval of Board.
7. The amount  of Rs.6,04,376/- appearing in the Accounts as on 31-3-2022  is related to loan

availed from State Bank of India and other Nationalized Banks on behalf of Weavers under DRI
schemes. Since banks have not claimed even the principal amount of the said loan as on date,
the Corporation has not made any provision for interest accrued on such loan in its accounts.
Even if the Banks claims interest on the Corporation, it will not affect the financial position of the
Corporation as the interest so charged will become the liability of the concerned weavers from
whom the loan was granted.

8. In the case of Thrift fund collected from Weavers, separate thrift pass book is maintained for
individual weavers.  As such there is no dispute regarding the balance in each individual account,
no reconciliation is made.

ANNEXURE – C
1) a) , b) & c).  The Fixed assets of the Company is situated in different locations in the state as

the Company is having Head Office, 3 Regional Offices, besides showrooms and other
procurement centres. The Company is in the practice of verifying the fixed assets once in a
year during the stock verification time as this is only practically possible considering the location/
volume of the assets. With respect to updating of movable tangible assets, the company will
take earnest efforts and with regard to reconciliation of Fixed Assets Register with revenue
records, the defect pointed out will be rectified immediately as far as possible.

2) a) The stock of the Corporation includes various items of Fabrics with innumerable rates and
the stock is spread out through out the state in 36 showrooms and 3 Regional  stores at
Trivandrum, Ernakulam and kannur . Besides, there is stock maintained at Hanveev Processing
House, Chirakkal also. The stock verification is planned in such a way that it will not affect the
normal sales in the Corporation and that is done during March every year. Considering the
nature of stock maintained in the Corporation, it is not practically possible to increase the
frequency of physical verification. However, internal control systems are planned in such a
manner that there will not be any wide variation between the physical stock and the book stock.

3) a) & b). Kerala Garments Ltd is a subsidiary Company of Hanveev, and Hanveev has granted
loan/working capital funds to Kerala Garments Ltd during the past several years in order to
meet urgent requirement of Kerala Garments Ltd. Kerala Garments Ltd has completed the
audit up to 2020-21  and the process of strike/Merge of Kerala Garments is in final stage. The
Corporation is hopeful that the entire amount receivable from KGL including interest is recoverable
while transferring the assets to Hanveev.

7) The Company will be prompt in future in remitting income tax, ESI and LIC as the delay has
occurred due to certain technical reasons.

8) Already replied in Annexure A  point No.7

14
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KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.,KANNUR

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022

RRRRR RRRRR RRRRR RRRRR
Particulars

 NOTES FORMING PARTS OF ACCOUNTS 1 to 65

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds

(a) Share Capital 1  496,600  496,600
(b) Reserves and Surplus 2 -1,247,458 -1,145,767
(c) Money received against share

warrants NIL -750,858 NIL -649,167

(2) Share application money pending
        allotment                                                          3  93,300 93,300         88,300            88,300
(3) Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 4 177,847  175,017
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) NIL NIL
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 5   968   849
(d) Long-term provisions 6   66,814 245,630  65,705  241,571

(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 7 800  230
(b) Trade payables NIL NIL
(i) Due to MSME NIL NIL
(ii) Due to Others 8  480,847  453,684
(c) Other current liabilities 9  500,462  409,830
(d) Short-term provisions NIL  982,109 NIL 863,743

TOTAL    570,181       544,448
II. ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
and Intangible Asset

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 10  9,888  10,835
(ii) Intangible Assets NIL NIL
(iii) Capital work-in-progress NIL NIL
(iv) Intangible assets under development NIL NIL

 9,888 10,835
(b) Non-current investments 11  4,856  4,856
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) NIL NIL
(d) Long-term Loans and Advances 12 12,941 12,941
(e) Other non-current assets NIL  27,685 NIL  28,633

(2) Current Assets
(a) Current Investments NIL NIL
(b) Inventories 13  382,175 344,485
(c) Trade Receivables 14 28,920  35,209
(d) Cash and Cash equivalents 15 34,752 34,876
(e) Short-term loans and advances 16  26,265 25,936
(f) Other current assets 17  70,384 542,496   75,309  515,815

TOTAL 570,181        544,448

21

Note
No.

As at 31 March 2021As at 31 March 2022

This is the statement of Balance sheet  referred to
 in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board
Sd/-

           T.K.GOVINDAN
CHAIRMAN
DIN: 07797281

Sd/-
  ARUNACHALAM SUKUMAR

 MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN : 06624132

Sd/-
    BINU.K

             DIRECTOR
DIN: 09405248

 SUNIL MATHEW.K
 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Sd/-

For M/s. GEORGE & REGI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Regn. No.009022S

Place: Kannur
Date : 1/11/2022
UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218

Place :THIRUVANANTHAPURAM
Date: 28/10/2022

Sd/-
P.J. REGI, FCA,D.I.S.A(ICAI) (partner)

 Memb. No: 209836
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As at As at
NOTE No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

RRRRR RRRRR

KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.,KANNUR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

Particulars

I. Revenue from Operations(Gross) 18 84,462    186,692

 Total  84,462  186,692
II. Other Income 19   46,714  36,028
III. Total Income (I + II)  131,177  222,720

IV. Expenditure

Cost of materials consumed  20 37,484 28,014
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 21 78,225  84,631
Changes in inventories of finished goods
Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 22 -33,199  16,324
Employees benefit expense  23 92,187   85,049
Finance Costs  24 19,301  19,102
Depreciation and amortization expense 10 1,235  1,169
Other expenses  25           37,636  38,742
Total expenses 232,868  273,030

V. Profit / Loss (-)Before Tax -101,692 -50,310
VI. Tax expense:

(1) Current Tax 0 0
(2) Deferred Tax 0 0

VII. Profit  / Loss (-)for the year -101,692 -50,310
VIII. Earnings per equity share:

a) Basic Earnings Per Share 26 -2.05 -1.13
b) Diluted Earnings Per Share -1.72 -0.85

NOTES FORMING PARTS OF ACCOUNTS 1 to 65
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This is the statement of Profit & Loss referred to
 in our report of even date For and on behalf of Board

Sd/-
           T.K.GOVINDAN

CHAIRMAN
DIN: 07797281

Sd/-
  ARUNACHALAM SUKUMAR

 MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN : 06624132

Sd/-
    BINU.K

             DIRECTOR
DIN: 09405248

 SUNIL MATHEW.K
 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Sd/-

For M/s. GEORGE & REGI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Regn. No.009022S

Place: Kannur
Date : 1/11/2022
UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218

Place :THIRUVANANTHAPURAM
Date: 28/10/2022

Sd/-
P.J. REGI, FCA,D.I.S.A(ICAI) (partner)

 Memb. No: 209836
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(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items  -101,692 50,310
(as per Statement of Profit and Loss)

Adjustments for Non Cash/ Non trade items:
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 1,235 1,169
Finance Cost                     19,301                     19,102
Interest received -569 -575
Other Inflow / (Outflows) of cash 1,229 -6,980

Operating profits before Working Capital Changes
Adjusted For: -80,496 -37,594
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 6,289 21,953
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 27,163                    27,281
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories -37,690                    20,224
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 90,633 -15,788
(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances -329 -740
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 4,925 7,881
Cash generated from Operations 10,495 23,217
Income Tax (Paid) / Refund -                                    -
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (A) 10,495 23,217

-287 -681
569 575

-  -220
- -

282 -326

-19,301 -19,102
570 -

2,830 2,070
-                  101,000

5,000 -97,000

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of tangible assets
Interest Received
Cash advances and loans made to other parties
Other Inflow / (Outflows) of cash
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities(B)

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Cost
Increase in / (Repayment) of Short term Borrowings
Increase in / (Repayment) of Long term borrowings
Increase in / (Decrease ) in share capital
Increase in / (Decrease ) in share application money pending allotment
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities(C)  -10,901  -13,032

RRRRR
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

RRRRR

KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD., KANNUR

23

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST March 2022
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D. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) -124 9,859
E. Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of period  34,876 25,018
F. Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of period 34,752 34,876
G. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(F-E) -124  9,859

24

Summary of Cash and Cash equivalent

Particulars

Cash in Hand             306            329

Cash at Bank          34,446           34,547

Total 34,752 34,876

As on 31.03.2021As on 31.03.2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/-

           T.K.GOVINDAN
CHAIRMAN
DIN: 07797281

Sd/-
  ARUNACHALAM SUKUMAR

 MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN : 06624132

Sd/-
 BINU.K

             DIRECTOR
DIN: 09405248  SUNIL MATHEW.K

 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Sd/-

For M/s. GEORGE & REGI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Regn. No.009022S

Place: Kannur
Date : 1/11/2022
UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218

Place :THIRUVANANTHAPURAM
Date: 28/10/2022

Sd/-
P.J. REGI, FCA,D.I.S.A(ICAI) (partner)

 Memb. No: 209836

AUDITORS’ REPORT
Vide our report of even date attached separately.
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KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.,KANNUR
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

The Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified , wherever necessary to conform to the current year presentation.

 As at 31st March 2021
RRRRR

1 .  SHARE CAPITAL:

AUTHORISED CAPITAL
50000000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 500,000  500,000
 (Previous year50000000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

             ISSUED CAPITAL
49660000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 496,600 496,600
(Previous year 49660000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

             SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL
49660000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each  496,600         496,600

             (Previous year49660000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

Total 496,600 496,600

 Particulars  As at 31st march 2022  As at 31st march 2021

No.of Shares

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year          496,600  49,660,000  395,600  39,560,000
Add: Shares issued during the year  101,000 10,100,000
Equity Shares at the end of the year        496,600  49,660,000     496,600  49,660,000

1.1.  The detailes of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares:

 Govt.of Kerala 49,605,770  99.89 %  49,605,770       99.86 %

1.2.  The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

As at 31st March 2022
RRRRR

25

 Rs. No.of Shares Rs.

 Name of the Shareholder  As at 31st march 2021
No.of Shares % held No.of Shares % held
As at 31st march 2022

Promoter name
% Changes during the year

No.of Shares % of  total
Shares

As on 31 March 2022
e) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Govt.of Kerala 49,605,770 99.89 %

Promoter name
% Changes during the year

No.of Shares % of  total
Shares

As on 31 March 2021

Govt.of Kerala  49,605,770 99.89 %
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 As at 31st march  2022  As at 31st march 2021

3. Share Application Money Pending Allotment  R R R R R  R R R R R

 As at 31st march 2022  As at 31st march 2021

2. Reserves and Surplus RRRRR RRRRR RRRRR RRRRR

Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 568  568
Profit and Loss Account 568 568
As per last Balance Sheet -11,47,662 -10,97,352
Add:Profit /Loss(-) during the year -101,692 -12,49,353 -50,310 -11,47,662
Deferred Income
As per last Balance Sheet  1,327  1,327
Total  1,327  1,327

1,327 1,327
Total -12,47,458 -11,45,767

Share Application Money Pending
                Allotment Received  93,300  88,300

 Total    93,300  88,300

 As at 31st march 2022  As at 31st march 2021
Secured *

 From Govt.of Kerala 423  423 423 423
Unsecured-From Govt of Kerala
a) For Purchase of Accumulated Stock                8,000             8,000
b) For Other Purpose  1,063  1,063
c) For IDP Kannur & Trivandrum and                   14,587                 14,587

Export Production Project,  Kannur -                        -
d) For steam Press Equipment for sub. co.KGL 686 686
e) For Vehicle Loan 225 225
f) For Yarn Bank 2,000                   2,000
g) For Processing Scheme 6,903                   6,903
h) For Margin Money Loan                   42,650                 39,820
i) For Raw Material Bank                   33,000                 33,000
j) For Mordernisation of Looms 900 900

k) Loan from Govt.for Sewing Machine to KGL 750 750
l) For Project Package Scheme - Central Share                   33,248                 33,248
m) For Project Package Scheme - State Share                   29,323                 29,323
n) For Pre Loom & Post Loom 3,486                   3,486
o) DRI Loans 604    177,424                     604               174,594

Total  177,847  175,017

4. LONG TERM BORRROWINGS RRRRR RRRRR RRRRR RRRRR

26

As at 31st march 2022
RRRRR

As at 31st march 2021
RRRRR

5. OTHER  LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Agency Deposits & Other Deposits  968         849
 Total  968         849
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8. TRADE PAYABLES
a) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
b) Due to others

For Purchase  3,085 2,748
For Expenses       477,761                  450,935

 Ageing Schedule of Trade payables  As at 31st March.2022 As at 31st March.2021
Unbilled 83 58
Not Due
(i) MSME
< 1 Year -                        -
1-2 years -                        -
2-3 years -   -
More than 3 years -   -
(ii) Others
< 1 Year 46,174 43,935
1-2 years 38,873 37,422
2-3 years 59,820 37,435
More than 3 years 335,898 334,834
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
< 1 Year -                        -
1-2 years -                        -
2-3 years -  -
More than 3 years -  -
(iv) Disputed dues -Others
< 1 Year -                        -
2-3 years -  -
More than 3 years - 480,847 - 453,684

Total 480,847 453,684

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Statutory due Payable       695        2,572
  Grant received from Govt. 358,400 358,251
  Advance received for GSU Scheme Sale 106,030   11,645
  Thrift Fund   21,418     19,100
  Others #   13,919 500,462     18,262   409,830

Total 500,462 409,830

27

 As at 31st march 2022  As at 31st march 2021
RRRRR RRRRR

    480,847  453,684

 As at 31st march 2022  As at 31st march 2021
RRRRR RRRRR6. LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

a) Provision for Employee Benefits
i) Gratuity 43,657 44,711
ii) Leave Encashment - Surrender Salary 23,158  66,814  20,995  65,705

Total               66,814 65,705

 As at 31st march 2022  As at 31st march 2021
RRRRR RRRRR

7. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

a) Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings
i) Margin Money Loan 800 230

Total  800 230

Total

* secured by Mortagage and charges of all fixed assets  of the Corporation including Land & Building.
 As at 31st march 2022  As at 31st march 2021

RRRRR RRRRR
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As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march 2021
rrrrr11. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

UNQUOTED LONG TERM TRADE INVESTMENTS   AT COST

One ‘C’ class share of the All India Handloom 1 1
Fabrics Marketing Society Ltd. fully paid

275 shares of R 200/- each fully paid in Travancore   55  55
Handloom Weavers Industrial Co-operative Society

On share of R 200/- each fully paid in Mangalthu-  0   0
konam Weavers Industrial Co-operative Society,Trivandrum

One share of R 200/- each fully paid in Puthussery  0 0
Weavers Industrial Co-operative Society, Kollam

48000 Equity Shares of R 100/- each fully paid in 4,800 4,800
Kerala Garments Ltd. (Subsidiary Company) 4,856  4,856

Total  4,856  4,856

12. LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Secured:
Loan to Kerala Garments Ltd (Subsidiary) 500 500
Unsecured:
Loan to Kerala Garments Ltd (Subsidiary)   1,520   1,520
Loan to Weavers Industrial Co-op Society & Individual Weavers:
a) For Assets  6,746 6,746
b) For Share Capital 232 232
c) For Other Loans 3,942  3,942

12,941  12,941
 Total 12,941           12,941

13. INVENTORIES

Rawmaterial 13,480  9,174
Work-in-Progress 11,217 12,808
Finished Goods  355,634  320,931
Stock inTrade  1,274 1,187
Stores and Spares 264   117
Packing Material & Others 307 382,175   268 344,485

Total  382,175  344,485

As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march 2021
rrrrr

As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march 2021
rrrrr

29
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLE

UNSECURED:
  Debts outstanding over six months

Considered good 20,898 27,874
Considered doubtful  31,232  26,888

 Total 52,131          54,762
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 31,232   26,888

20,898 27,874
Debtors outstanding less than six months 8,022 7,336

Total 28,920          35,209

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balance with Banks  33,891 34,019
Other Bank Balances 555  528
Cash in hand # 306  329

Total 34,752    34,876

# includes Stamps

As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march 2021
rrrrr

30

Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivables   As at 31st March.2022   As at 31st March.2021
Unbilled
Not Due
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered goods
< 6 months -                        -
6 months - 1 year -                        -
1-2 years -                        -
2-3 years -                        -
More than 3 years
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered doubtful
< 6 months 8,022 7,169
6 months - 1 year 11,751 14,691
1-2 years 3,799 2,435
2-3 years   5,349                   10,914
More than 3 years 31,232                   26,888
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered goods
< 6 months -                        -
6 months - 1 year -                        -
1-2 years -                        -
2-3 years -                        -
More than 3 years
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables Considered doubtful
< 6 months -                        -
6 months - 1 year -                        -
1-2 years -                        -
2-3 years -                        -
More than 3 years - 60,152        -                   62,098
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 31,232   26,888

 Total 28,920               35,209

As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march 2021
rrrrr
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16. SHORTERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured)

Loan to KGL (Subsidiary) 19,061 18,911
Advance to Suppliers  1,323  1,323
Duties and Taxes  5,880  5,701

Total 26,265   25,936

17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Unsecured)

Deposits                   10,405                 11,496
Interest on Loan to KGL Receivable                   26,493                 26,493
Other Interest Receivable                   18,830                 18,838
TDS/TCS 663 716
 Others                   13,583  69,974            12,541  70,084

 Recievable from Weavers, Societies etc. 2,182                   6,997
 Less: Provision            1,772  410                1,772  5,225

 Total              70,384           75,309

18. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products
Sales of Handloom Fabrics  99,797  195,277

         Stock Shortage 202  180
         Less : -

        Discount on Sale               15,632.46             84,366   9,866.59 185,591
Other Operating Revenue
         Processing charges received 96  1,101

Total 84,462  186,692

19. OTHER INCOME
Interest Received 560 563
Sundry Receipts               356    2,291
Interest on Stock Deficit 1  -
Insurance claim Received  - 42
Sale of Scrap 142 73
Exhibition Grant  - 811
Miscellaneous income (GSU)                   44,500                 25,000
Bonus Written Back 6 7
Group Gratuity Writtenback  -                   6,952
Cutting Allowances  - 4
Sale of Tender Form 105 45
Interest on Deposit with KSEB     9 12
Prior period Income 1,036                 46,714                229  36,028

TOTAL  46,714           36,028

31

 As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

 As at 31st march 2021
rrrrr

 As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march  2021
rrrrr

 As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march  2021
rrrrr

 As at 31st march 2022
fffff

 As at 31st march 2021
fffff
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 As at 31st march 2022
RRRRR

As at 31st march 2021
RRRRR20. COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Opening Stock 9,292 13,179
Add: purchase(Net of returns)  41,936 24,127

51,228 37,306
Less: Closing Stock  13,743  37,484  9,292     28,014

   Total 37,484          28,014

21. PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

Stock in trade (from weavers & SHG’S) 78,225  84,631
78,225   84,631

 Total  78,225  84,631

22. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS,WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

 Inventories (At the beginning)  334,926 351,250
 Inventories ( At Close)  368,125 -33,199  334,926  16,324

Total -33,199   16,324

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages & Allowances    82,864 74,735
Bonus  213  727
Contribution to Provident & Other funds   8,711  9,082
Staff Welfare Expenses 398 92,187  505 85,049

Total  92,187  85,049

23. 1 As per Accounting Standard 15 “ Employee Benefits “, the disclosures as defined in the
Accounting Standard are given below :
Defined Contribution Plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans , recognised as
expense for the year is as under :

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund  8,328   8,530
Employer’s Contribution to ESI 280  447
Employer’s Contribution to Labour welfare Fund   15   17
Employer’s Contribution to KHWWF  89  8,711 88   9,082

 Total  8,711             9,082

24. FINANCE COST
Interest on Govt.Loans  18,432 18,355
Penal interest on Govt loan  370 370
Interest on late remittance of EPF 441 122
Interest on prof tax -  0
Interest on loan  -  232
Interest on Income Tax   6     9
Interest on  Service Tax/GST 52   12
Interest on  LWF   -  19,301   -   19,102

 Total 19,301  19,102

32

As at 31st march 2022
fffff

 As at 31st march 2021
fffff

 As at 31st march 2022
fffff

As at 31st march 2021
fffff

As at 31st march 2021
fffff

 As at 31st march 2022
fffff

 As at 31st march  2022
RRRRR

As at 31st march 2021
RRRRR

As at 31st march 2022
fffff

 As at 31st march 2021
fffff



29

Kerala State Handloom Development Corporation Limited, Kannur.

39th Annual Report & Accounts 2006-07 3333

25. OTHER EXPENSES

MANUFACTURING & TRADING EXPENSES
Printing,  Processing & Dyeing Charges 1,964                   1,031
Carriage Inwards 131 101
Stitching charges               831          2,397
Fuel & Oil 617 260
Electricity Charges 547 612
Production Incentive  7,019                   9,405
Repairs   536                  11,644  817                  14,625

OFFICE & ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Director’s Sitting Fees 9 11
Travelling Expenses:-
Managing Director  Nil  Nil
Directors 46 16
Others 564  610  421 438

 Rent 6,691                   6,381
 Rates & Taxes               185          1,099
 Filing fee 76 10
 Postage telegerams ,Telex & Telephone charges 471 439
 Printing & Stationary 612 684
 Light & Water  Charges  722  766
 Vehicle Maintenance   1,350                   1,358
 Insurance 778 787
 Legal expenses 529 149
 Office expenses 225 146
 Meeting expenses 293 179
 General charges 6,322                   6,678
 Bank Charges 116 200
 Prior Period Expense                 74  18,443            -                  18,875

 Payments to Auditors 250 250 237 237

 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

 CarriageOutward/Freight,Packing& forwarding 680 423
 Advertisement & Publicity 363 331
 Commission on Sales  491  375
 Exhibition & Sales Promotion expenses 802 500
 Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 4,344                   6,680                  2,928 4,556

 Total                37,636                  38,742

 As  at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march 2021
rrrrr
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25.1  PAYMENT TO AUDITORS AS:
Statutory Audit Fees 58  58
Tax Audit Fees 25 5
Internal Audit Fee 160  160
In any other Manner 7 250  15   237

 Total  250              237

26. EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

Net profit / loss after tax attributable to -101,692 -50,310
Equity share holders
Weighted Average Number of Equity shares 49,660,000 44,610,000
Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic -2.05 -1.13
(2) Diluted -1.72 -0.85

 As at 31st march 2022
rrrrr

As at 31st march 2021
rrrrr

 As at 31st march 2022  As at 31st march 2021
RRRRR RRRRR
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NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

27. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

Financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and complying in
material aspects with the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013. The accounting policies
have been consistently applied by the Company during the period and are consistent with those used in the
previous year
b) Use of Estimates

The preparation and presentation of financial statement required estimates and assumptions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized.
c) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset

The gross block of fixed assets is stated at cost of acquisition or construction, including any cost attributable
to bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to each
item of Fixed asset are added to book value only if they increase the future benefit from the existing asset
beyond previously assessed standard of performance. Cost of borrowing for assets taking substantial time to
be ready for uses is capitalized for the period up to the time , the assets is ready for its intended use.
d) Depreciation

Depreciation has been providing  on written down value method on pro rata basis at the rate specified in
the revised schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 vide notification No.GSR 756 (E) dated 16th December 
1993 till the financial year 2013-14. As the Companies Act 2013 is in force w e f 1/4/2014 , depreciation is 
provided using WDV method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act ,2013.

e) Impairment of Assets
On an annual basis   the Company makes an assessment of any indicator that may lead to impairment of

assets. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. The
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. Value is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the
end of its usful life.

f) Investments

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and quoted/fair value, computed investment wise.  Long
term investments are stated at cost.  Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments is made only
if such decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the management. Investment that are readily realizable
and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investment are made , are
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments.
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g) Employees Retirement Benefits
1. Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity with respect to defined benefit schemes are covered through Group Gratuity Scheme with Life
Insurance Corporation of India and are charged against revenue.
2. Defined Contribution Plans

Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, and Employees State Insurance Fund
are determined under the relevant Schemes and/or Statute, charged to the Profit & Loss Account when incurred.
3. Provision is made for leave encashment based on at the Balance Sheet date calculated by the Company
and recognized as expenses in statement of Profit & Loss.
4. Termination benefits, if any, are recognized as an expense as and when incurred.
h) Inventories
1. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
2. Cost is determined as follows –
a) Stores, spare parts and catalysts are valued on first in first out method.
b) Raw materials (Yarn) and Dyes & Chemicals are valued at cost less subsidy receivable and follows  first

in first out method.
c) Work in process included in the valuation is determined on the basis of actual consumption rates closer to

the year end.  Cost of inventory and Finished Goods at retail outlets and Regional Stores are determined
on a retail method, by reducing from the sales value of the inventory an appropriate percentage of gross
margin. Value of finished cloth is determined based on cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

i) Taxes on Income
Provision for Income Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the year at current rates.

Tax expense comprise of Current Tax and Deferred Tax at the applicable enacted or substantively enacted
rates.  Current tax represents the amounts of income tax payable/recoverable in respect of the taxable income/
loss for the reporting period.  Deferred tax represents the effect of timing difference between taxable income
and accounting income for the reporting period that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods.  The deferred tax asset is recognized and carried forward only to the extent that
there is a reasonable certainty that the assets will be realized in future.  However, where there is unabsorbed
depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is
virtual certainty of realization of assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for their
reliasability.
Minimum Alternative Tax(MAT)

Minimum Alternative Tax credit (MAT credit). Minimum alternative tax credit is recognized as an asset only
when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that to the company will pay normal tax during the specified
period.  Such assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.  And the carrying amount of the MAT credit
asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will
pay normal income tax during the specified period.
j) Government grants :
1. Govt. grants related to depreciable fixed assets are treated as deferred income and are allocated to

income over the period in proportion to which depreciation on those assets are charged.
2. Government grants related to non-depreciable fixed assts are credited to Capital Reserve.
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3. Grants received for distribution to individual weavers and weaver’s industrial co-operative societies are
treated as current liabilities to the extent they are not distributed amongst the weavers/societies.

k) Research & Development expenditure
Research and development expenditure other than on specific development-cum-sales contracts is

charged off as expenditure when incurred.  R&D expenditure on development cum sale contracts is treated at
par with other sales contracts.  Such expenditure on fixed assets is capitalized.
l) Provision and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made.  Provisions are not discounted to their present values and are determined based on
management estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.  They are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their
existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company.

 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
m) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Net Profit after tax attributable to the Equity
Shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year. The diluted
Earnings Per Share is arrived by taking into account the number of share application money pending for
allotment.

n) Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.  Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and balances with banks in current and deposit accounts with necessary disclosure of
cash and cash equivalent balances that are available for use by the company.
o) Revenue recognition

Sales revenue is recognized on transfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to
the buyer and stated at net of GST and trade discounts.  Income from services is recognized as the services
are rendered, based on agreement/arrangement with the concerned parties, Dividend income on investments
is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is established. Interest income is recognized on time
proportion basis.  Certain claims of the Company, insurance, etc. in respect of which quantum of accruals
cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are accounted on acceptance basis. Expenses or Incomes
are adjusted to the extent for subsequent recoveries wherever applicable.
p) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assts are capitalized.
Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. In determining the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization during a period, any income earned on the temporary
investment of those borrowing is deducted from the borrowing costs incurred.
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Yarn 72,48,485.13    1,17,65,852 1,07,28,907 72,48,485.13
Fabrics/cloth/Lungies/Dothies 33,49,25,958.07  36,81,25,194 35,12,49,919 33,49,25,958.07
Dyes & chemicals 19,25,654.50 17,13,706 20,36,207 19,25,654.50
Stores 1,17,475.00 2,63,730 4,13,861 1,17,475.00
Packing Material 2,67,555.00 3,07,016 2,80,241 2,67,555.00

TOTAL 34,44,85,127.70 38,21,75,498 36,47,09,135 34,44,85,127.70
No value is considered for the stock of old damaged yarn worth Rs. 12,800.20/- and cloth (Cut bits/Damaged)
worth Rs. 1,01,99,724.70/- .as the Corporation could neither utilize these items till date nor expect to realize
any amount by selling the same. However now we have utilizing these cubits for stitching cloth carry bags and
which are used in our showrooms in the place of plastic carry bags.

2021-22                2020-21
28. 1. Employee Benefit Expense

a) Expenditure incurred on employees who were
in receipt of remuneration aggregating to
Rs. 24, 00,000 or more per year or Rs. 2, 00,000  Nil  Nil
Per month employed for part of the year.

b) Expenditure incurred on employees who were
in receipt of remuneration aggregating to Rs. 24 lakhs or Nil  Nil
more per year  or  Rs. 2  lakh per  month  where

    employees are employed throughout the year
2. Disclosure requirement U/s 73 of Companies Act 2013

The total amount of loan outstanding
(a) from shareholders         Rs. 17,86,47,341 Rs. 17,52,47,341

(b) from directors           NIL  NIL
(c) from relatives of directors           NIL  NIL

Accounting head in the financial statements          : Loans under Long Term Borrowings
The loan from Shareholders include loan amounting to Rs.15,45,47,341 outstanding as on 31-03-2014.

29. EARNING PER SHARE

a. Net Profit/Loss during the year attributable to
Equity shareholders before extra-ordinary items. (10,16,91,699) (5,03,09,766)

b. Extra ordinary items . Nil Nil
c. Net Profit/Loss after extra ordinary items. (10,16,91,699) (5,03,09,766)
d. Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the period 4,96,60,000 4,46,10,000
 Basic Earnings per Share for 2021-22

- after extra ordinary items (2.05) (1.13)
- before extra ordinary items (2.05) (1.13)

R R
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30. STOCK

Items 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21
Opening Stock R Closing Stock R Opening Stock R  Closing Stock R
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31. The Corporation has received Sales Tax Assessment Order upto 2003-04 and thereafter further notices are
not received for assessment.
32. Investment includes an amount of Rs.48,00,000/- being the value of shares in Kerala Garments Ltd a
subsidiary Company of the Corporation. The majority of shares are in the name of the Company and remaining
in the name of employees of the corporation as nominees (last year Rs.48,00,000/-).

    R

Value of shares held in the name of the Company  47,99,300
  (Kerala Handloom Finance and Trading Corp. Ltd)

Value of shares held in the name of individuals as nominees  700
48,00,000

33. An amount of  Rs.68,05,598.33 /- is receivable from Government of Kerala on account of rebate allowed on
sales of Handloom Fabrics as on 31.03.2022 (last year figure, Rs.1,18,30,385.56/-). This amount include
Rs.4,45,731/- representing rebate claimed on sale at various expo conducted during 1991-92 to 1999-2000.
The Corpn could not get reimbursement of this amount from Govt. for want of supporting Govt order sanctioning
20% rebate. However, as decided in the Board Meeting held at 7-7-2010, the DHT has been requested to
recommend to Govt. to sanction and release the amount to the Corpn as a special case as the same was
actually incurred by it in the form of rebate allowed to the consumers. Although request was forwarded to
Government for releasing Rs. 4,45,731/- , no decision is received from Government yet on  this matter. These
amount have been included under Trade Receivables.
34. Balance under Sundry Debtors, Loans & Advance, Sundry Creditors etc. have not been confirmed.
35. Interest on loan to weaver members (shareholders) has not been provided in the accounts during the year.
Repayments are not regularly forthcoming and efforts are being made to recover the maximum possible
amount. However, provisions for bad and doubtful debts have been created for full amount.
36. TURNOVER

   Particulars 2021-22 (RRRRR) 2020-21 (RRRRR)

Fabrics/cloth/Lungies/dothies etc. 8,41,64,225 18,54,10,616

8,41,64,225 18,54,10,616
Stock Shortage 2,02,109 1,80,235

TOTAL 8,43,66,334

37. PURCHASES
Particulars 2021-22 (RRRRR))))) 2020-21 (RRRRR)

Yarn 4,20,74,831 2,39,05,692
Cloth 7,82,24,950 8,46,30,662
Dyes & Chemicals 8,10,946 8,24,333
Consumable Stores 2,33,691 2,02,831

TOTAL 12,13,44,418 10,95,63,518

39

   18,55,90,851
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38. PAYMENT TO AUDITORS Rs.
1) As Auditor         :  57,500
2) As Adviser, or in any other capacity, in respect of

a. Taxation matters :   25,000
b. Company law matters : Nil
c. Management services : Nil

3) Internal Auditing :  1,60,000
4) In any other Manner :  7,442

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE:
     Name of the Related party              Relationship

Sri  Sukumar Arunachalam Key Management Personnel of Company
Sri. Govindan Thozhikot Kuttyat Chairman
Sri. Karunakaran Nair Binu Director
Sri. Raveendran Director
Sri. Appukuttannair Radhakrishnannair Director
Sri. Murali.S Director
Sri. K S Pradeep Kumar Director
Sri. Sunil Mathew Kalarickal CFO
Kerala Garments Ltd. Subsidiary Company

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a). MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION &        2021-22         2020-21
        TRAVELLING EXPENSES   Rs. Rs.

 Salaries & allowances (Gross)
Sri. Arunachalam Sukumar Nil Nil
Sri.Sudhir.K Nil Nil

     Travelling Expenses
Sri. Pradeep Kumar K.S 23,508  Nil
Sri. Arunachalam Sukumar Nil Nil

Value of rent free accomodation
 Sri. Arunachalam Sukumar Nil Nil

(b) CHAIRMAN’S HONOURARIUM  &
TRAVELLING EXPENSES  2021-22 2020-21

Rs. Rs.
Honorarium

Sri.K.P.Sahadevan 37,419 2,40,000
Sri.T.K.Govindan   71,613 Nil

Travelling expenses

Sri.K.P.Sahadevan 2,104   9,348
Sri.T.K.Govindan 4,198 Nil

40
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(c) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

• Transactions with the subsidiary company Kerala Garments Limited has been disclosed under clause
40 of the notes to accounts.

41. The Corporation had received loans from Government of Kerala for various purposes including
implementation of different projects under 20 point programmes. The Corporation has requested the
Government of Kerala to convert these loans into equity.  Accordingly, Government vide G.O. (MS)
No.199 / 89 / ID, dt, 27-12-89 have converted Rs.120.89 lakhs into equity. Hence, no provision has been
made in the account for interest for the loans of Rs. 288.99 lakhs up to the year 1995-96. The interest and
penal interest on defaulted principal amount worked out for those loans upto 31-03-96 was Rs. 492.98
lakhs.
The loan from Govt. is overdue for long time, but Corporation has submitted request to Govt. to convert
the loan in to Equity. The loan amount is shown under the head Long Term Borrowings. Out of this long
term borrowings, Govt. loan amounting to  Rs.17.80 cores  includes defaulted principal amount of Rs.16.40
cores. The accumulated interest including defaulted interest on Govt. Loan amounting to Rs.44.03 crores
outstanding to be paid on 31/3/2022, is shown under the head Other Current Liabilities.

42. The Subsidiary company, Kerala Garments Limited has stopped its operations on 9-01-2007. No provision
for interest amounting to Rs.4,05,70,266 /- is provided by the Corporation in respect of loan given to the
above Company, since the recovery is doubtful.
An amount of Rs. 133,77,224 /- paid to M/s. Kerala Garments Ltd, Subsidiary Company of the Corporation
for meeting their day-to-day expenses and an amount of Rs. 56,83,774/- incurred on behalf of M/s Kerala
Garments Limited. In respect of their day-to-day expense have been included under loans and advances
as loan (Total – 1,90,60,999/-)  (last year Rs.1,89,11,146/-). Maximum amount of   loan appearing     under
this head stood at Rs. 190.61 lakhs. Apart from the above a term loan of Rs.20,20,000/- is also given to
Kerala Garments Limited. As was done last year no interest which  work out to Rs..20,06,580 /- has  been
provided  in the accounts for the working capital loan  amount for the year 2021-22, since Kerala Garments
LTD has stopped its operations. The interest amount for the year 2007-08 to 2021-22 under this head
works out to Rs. 3,04,99,694 /-.The interest amount provided in the accounts is only up to 2006-07  which
comes to  Rs.186,77,569 /.   Interest for   the year   2021-22  amounting to Rs. 9,00,800 /- is charged on
the loan amount of Rs.20,20,000/- is not taken as income  in to accounts. The Interest amount for the year
2009-10 to 2020-21    under this head works out to Rs.1,00,70,572 /-  Interest is provided in the accounts
only up to    2008-09 which comes to Rs.78,15,542 /- However Principal as well as interest amount is not
repaid by Kerala Garments Ltd. on the above loan till date. Besides  Vide Govt. Order  No. G O (MS)
No.15/2011/ID dt 18/1/2011  it is ordered to transfer the total assets and liabilities of KGL to Hanveev.
Govt has also sanctioned and released an amount of Rs.50 Lakhs to Hanveev Vide Order No. GO (Rt)
No.388/2015/ID    dt 14/05/2015  in order to settle the liabilities of KGL. Under the circumstances, it is
hopeful that the entire amount receivable from KGL including interest is recoverable while transferring
the assets to Hanveev and after  complying with the provisions of Companies Act 2013 . In this connection
Kerala Garments Limited  has re-constituted its Board of directors and a meeting of Board of Directors
was convened on 21st June 2018 .Further Kerala Garments Ltd  has completed its audit up to 2020-21
and the process of strike off/Merge of Kerala Garments Ltd  is in final stage.
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NAME TRANSACTION RELATION AMOUNT (in  Rs) OUTSTANDING AS
ON 31/03/2022

Government of
Kerala Loan Received Share holder 34,00,000 17,86,47,341.01

Government of
Kerala Interest paid Share holder 1,88,01,918 NA
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43. In the absence of confirmation / claims from suppliers covered under interest on delayed payments to
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act 2006, it has not been possible to disclose the principal and
the interest outstanding to any such small scale industrial undertakings.

44. An  amount of  Rs.3,99,262.50  is fixed as final liability of  Sri.A.S.Mohemmed Sherief, former Managing
director  towards irregular expenditure and advance claimed by him during his tenure in the Corporation.
Said liability has been informed to his parent organization Kerafed for recovery purposes. The same
has been also informed to Government.

45. Provision for bad and doubtful debts has been provided at 100% on the balance due from Sundry
Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding 3 years. The amount of Sundry Debtors (Sales) and Sundry
Debtors (Others)  exceeding 3 years comes to Rs.3,12,32,243 /-and the accumulated provision till date
comes to  Rs.2,68,88,499 /- .Since the difference between actual Sundry Debtors exceeding 3 years
and the accumulated provision made till date is Rs. 43,43,745 /-, the same is added to the provision
during this year.

46. Interest on defaulted amount of credit sales affected through showrooms has not been provided for in
the accounts. Interests collected on account of overdue payments are accounted on cash basis.

47. Interest on defaulted interest on Government loans have not been provided in the accounts up to 2007-
08 and the amount comes to Rs..138.35 lakhs as on that date.

48. As the Corporation is not making payment of DA Arrear for the past so many years,    and the Board is
also taking decision to pay DA with prospective effect only, the provision for DA arrear is not provided in
the books of accounts from F.Y 2011-12 onwards. However certain ex-employees of the Corporation
vide 3 WP (c) approached Hon’ble High Court of Kerala and has claimed to provide DA arrear from 2004
onwards and the case is disposed and court has directed to hear the petitioner  to consider the matter
and inform the status to Govt accordingly.

49. (a)  Interest and penal interest in respect of  loans given to IDP & EPP societies have not been taken
 credit of in the accounts during the year under report.

(b) Interest in respect of loans given to Kambil & Kannapuram Societies   amounting to Rs.204.89  lakhs
have not been taken credit of in the accounts during the year under report(last year Rs.175.93 lakhs).

50. Sri T  Dhanraj, Sales Assistant had committed misappropriation of Corporation’s funds to the tune of
Rs..36,622.80 and he was dismissed from the service of the corporation on 26/4/2008.The amount due
from him together with interest  @15% p.a will be adjusted from the terminal benefits  due to him.

51. Smt. Ajitha Raveendran, Packer was suspended from service while working in charge of Hanveev
showroom, Ranni for the misappropriation and unauthorized credit sales, manipulation of selling price
on the fabrics, stock shortage etc…A domestic enquiry has been conducted and liability fixed at
Rs..64,702.85. She has remitted Rs.36,033/-. Considering this she was reinstated in service and posted
at R.O.Kannur without prejudice to the right of the corporation to complete the disciplinary proceedings
in a time bound manner as per service rules of the corporation. Further memo dated 17/12/08 was
issued to remit the balance amount with 24% penal interest. Since the explanation submitted was found
unsatisfactory and considering the serious irregularities, she was dismissed from the service of the
Corporation with effect from 30-07-2009. The balance amount of Rs. 28,669.85 with interest will be adjusted
from the terminal benefits due to her.

52. An amount of  Rs. 1,81,296+15% interest to be realized from Sri. R.R.Nair, Former MD due to excess
salary drawn by him during his tenure as MD and RR proceedings is initiated against him for recovery of
the omissions.

53. A case was filed (FDP 16/2008) in the Hon’ble Court of IX Additional City Civil Judge, Bangalore against
Sri. M.V Govindan, owner of closed agency showroom of Hanveev at Bangalore for realizing the dues
of Rs.7,09,339/-. The Court has pronounced the judgment in favour of the Corporation allowing to sell the
mortgaged property for realizing the dues of Rs.7,09,339/-. We have filed the execution petition in the
Court of City Civil Judge, Bangalore including paper publication for proclamation of the sale of property
under attachment through our Advocate.

54. Handloom Projects Krithika, Kannur & Thanima Thiruvananthapuram are being implemented through the
Corporation at Kannur & Thiruvananthapuram. Funds required for these projects are released to the
Corporation through DRDA, Kannur and Thiruvananthapuram respectively. The accounts relating to these
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projects are to be kept separately. As such expenses incurred for the implementation of these projects
are treated as the concerned project’s Expenses and assets created are shown as the concerned
Project’s Assets. Both these amounts are deducted from the total grant amount received and net amount
of grants are shown in the balance sheet under current liability.

55. A project IHCD is being implemented through the corporation. The funds required for this was released
to the corporation from the office of the Devt. Commissioner for Handloom. The expenses incurred for
the implementation of the project is treated as IHCD project expenses. The transactions relating to this
project are now being done directly by IHCD office. The required funds are transferred to the separate
bank account No: 67046427657 opened for this purpose with SBI Pravachambalam which is operated by
IHCD officials along with RM Trivandrum. The amount already spent by the Corporation together with the
amount transferred to said bank account is deducted from the total Grant amount received and net
amount of grant shown in Balance sheet  under Current Liability.

56. Government of Kerala launched a project for supplying of Free School Uniform  to Government   School
students up to 7 th standard. Government  was also nominated to Hanveev as one of  the implementing
agencies and directed to collect and supply uniform fabrics for 7 districts in Kerala from Thrissur to
Kasaragod.  During the year 2021-22, the corporation has received Rs. 9,43,85,339 towards advance for
Sale of uniform material to be made during the year 2022-23. The entire amount received is disclosed
under other current liabilities as advance received.

57. ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION
i. Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the company

a) The title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold,
are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

b) In  respect of  immovable  properties  of land  and building  that have been taken on lease  and
disclosed  as  fixed  assets in  the financial statements as on the balance sheet date, the lease
agreement is in the name of the Company.

ii. Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets    (including
Right-of-Use Asset) since the Company has adopted cost model as its   accounting policy to an
entire Class of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible  assets in accordance with the
applicable Accounting Standard.

iii. Loans and Advances (Non-Current)
The Company has granted the following loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors,
KMPs and other related parties that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment

iv. Capital-Work-In Progress(CWIP)
The Company has no Capital-Work-In-Progress Projects during the year.

v. Intangible Asset Under Development
The Company has no Intangible Asset under Development during the year.

vi. Proceedings under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder
There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

vii. Borrowings from banks
The Company has no borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets at any point of time during the year.
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Sl No. Particulars Relation Amount Outstanding
as on 31.03.2022

1 Kerala Garments Limited. Subsidiary 1,90,60,998



4044

Kerala State Handloom Development Corporation Limited, Kannur.

39th Annual Report & Accounts 2006-07

viii. Willful Defaulter
The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lenders.

ix. Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company did not have any transactions with Companies struck off under Section 248 of
Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 considering the information available
with the Company.

x. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
No charges or satisfaction is to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

xi. Compliance with number of layers of companies
Being a  government  company  compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87)  of
section 2  of  the  Act read  with  Companies  (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable.

xii. Key Financial Ratios

Reasons for Variation if more than 25% - Note
1) Due to decrease in Profit after tax during the year
2) Due to decrease in sales during the year
3) Due to decrease in sales during the year
4) Due to decrease in sales during the year
5) Due to decrease in profit during the year
6) Due to decrease in Profit during the year

xiii. Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
There are no Scheme  of  Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of  sections
230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Particulars Numerator Denominator As at
31/03/22

As at
31/03/21

Variance
(in %) Remarks

Current Ratio Current
Assets Current Liabilities 0.55 0.60 -7.50 -

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Share holders
Equity -0.24 -0.27 -11.87 -

Debt Service Coverage
Ratio

Earnings
Available For
Debt service

Debt service 88.97 81.34 9.38 -

Return on Equity Ratio
(ROE) NPAT Average Share

holders Equity 0.15 0.07 94.77 Note 1
Inventory Turnover
Ratio Sales Average Inventory  0.23  0.53 -55.85 Note 2
Trade receivables
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit
Sales

Average Accounts
Receivable  2.92 5.27 -44.66 Note 3

Trade payables
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit
Purchase

Average Trade
Payables  0.25 0.24 4.24 -

Net Capital Turnover
Ratio Revenue Working Capital -0.19 -0.53 -64.02 -

Net Profit Ratio NPAT Revenue -1.21 -0.27 344.65 -

Return on Capital
Employed (ROCE)

Average
Investment

EBIT Capital Employed 0.20 0.10 104.64 Note 4

Return on Investment Interest
Received Average

Investment  -   - -
a) Fixed Income
b) Equity Dividend  -   - -
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xiv. Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium
The company has not advanced/loaned/invested or received funds (either borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding  (whether  recorded  in writing or  otherwise)  that  the
Intermediary  shall  directly  or  indirectly  lend  or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xv. Undisclosed Income
There are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account to be surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

xvi. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The company is not covered under section 135.

xvii. Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

58. Reclassifications of previous year figures upon complying with Schedule III Amendments
The Company  is  required to comply with the amendments in Schedule III of  Companies Act,  2013
notified on 24-03-2021, with effect from 01-04-2021. Accordingly the  Company has complied with the
disclosure  and  presentation  requirements  as  per  the aforesaid amendments and reported the
figures in thousands and also reclassified the items in the previous years, to conform to current year
classification, wherever necessary.

59. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments not provided for in respect of :

 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:-
a) Contingent liability for arrear lease rent demanded by District Collector, Trivandrum for Rs. 1,02,08,710/-

was received on 17-6-03 from District Collector for arrear lease rent of Nemom land in survey No.103/16
for the period from 01-06-94 to 31-03-03. The Corporation has filed an appeal before the Revenue
Department.  The report from the District Collector for re-fixing the arrear lease rent is still pending.

b) An  amount of Rs.4,70,655/- levied as damages by the Assistant Commissioner EPFO, Kannur vide
letter No.KR/KNR/Enf1(2) damages/3215/2014-15/2651 dated 27/10/2014 is stayed by the Honorable
High Court of Kerala and hence no provision for damages is made in the Accounts.

c) An amount of Rs.12,25,391/- levied as damages by the  Assistant Commissioner, EPFO Kannur vide
letter No.KR/KNR/3215/Enf1(2) /7q/2016-17 dated 28-06-2016 is stayed by the Honorable EPF Appellate
Tribunal Bangalore.

d) i) The Assistant commissioner of EPFO, Kannur vide his letter No.KR/KNR/Enf1 (2) I/KR/3215/CA/1842
dated: 18-9-2017 has levied interest and damages amounting to Rs.6,39,007 /- and Rs.10,27,008/-
respectively for the period from 5/2016 to 11/2016 with the total liability amounting to Rs.16,66,015/-.
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D) Other Commitments

Particulars As at 31 st March 2022
(In R)

A) Contingent Liabilities
a) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts               2,02,41,226
b) Guarantees given to others NIL
B) Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on

capital amount and not provided for:
a) Tangible assets
Total Contract amount
Less : Paid

b) Intangible Assets NIL
C) Uncalled liability on partly paid shares NIL

NIL

Rs.
Rs.
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ii) The Assistant commissioner of EPFO vide letter No.KR/KNR/0003215/0000 Enf/502/Damages/3428
dated:12-01-2018 levied interest and damages amounting to Rs.8,87,134 and 18,48,196 with the total
liability coming to Rs.27,35,330/- for delayed remittance during the period from 06/2015 to 4/2016.
 In connection to the matters mentioned above, after seeking necessary clarification , EPFO issued
letter KR/KNR/3215/Enf.1(2)/7Q/2017-18/4905 dated : 22-02-2018 levying interest amounting to
Rs.14,81,098/- for the period from 06/2015 to 11/2016(consolidated).For damages amounting to
Rs.27,81,851/- EPFO issued letter KR/KNR/3215/Enfi(2)/Damages/2017-18 dated: 22-02-2018 for the
period from 06/2015 to 11/2016(consolidated). Corporation has remitted the interest portion, however for
damages, Corporation has filed an appeal before the Honorable EPF Appellate Tribunal and a stay is
anticipated.

e) The Assistant Commissioner  of EPFO, Kannur vide their letter No.KR/KNR/3215/Enf.1(2) /Damages/
2018-19/760 dated 30-7-2018 has levied interest and damages for the delayed remittance of EPF for the
period from 6/2016 to 01/2018 amounting to Rs.12,17,467/- and 20,71,522/- respectively, total liability is
Rs.32,88,989/-. Corporation already remitted the interest portion on 21-8-2018. Further corporation filed
an appeal against damages levied before the honorable EPF Appellate Authority Central Government
Industrial Tribunal-Cum-Labour Court, Ernakulam. On anticipation that the Honourable EPF Appellate
Authority will grant stay, hence no provision for damages is made in the account.
With reference to damages, appeal against the order of CGIT to remit 60% of damages (Rs.39,29,651/-),
has been filed before Hon’ble High Court . As per the direction of the Hon’ble High Court, Corporation
has remitted 50 % of damages  (Rs.19,64,824/-) asked to remit by CGIT for filing  WP( C ) Nos 11667/
2020,23325/2020,23140/2020 & 23097/2020 before the Hon’ble  High Court and the matter is still pending
before the Hon’ble High Court.

f) Contingent liability for the property tax for Rs.31,84,726/- payable to Trivandrum corporation in respect of
building No.TC 52/2641(1) of cluster office of the corporation,  the Corporation has submitted a representation
to Government on 17-06-2020 for exempting the  corporation from paying the property tax. Further
Corporation Vide their Demand notice dated 23-3-2021 and again they ask the corporation to remit an
amount of Rs.31,84,726/- in respect for the above building. Corporation is in the process of giving
representation to Government for exempting /waving the property tax.. Corporation except the favorable
response from the government that the property tax will be exempted. Since the building constructed by
utilizing the grant received from Government for the upliftment of shattered traditional weavers and hence
the property tax amount payable to Tvm Corporation is not provided in the Accounts.

g) As per the directions of the board of directors in its 335th meeting, dated 13.03.2019 the MD was
authorized to make further negotiation with KWA up on the matter of Revenue Recovery of the Water
Charge dues related to the old Regional Office Building at Ernakulam. Even though the Assistant Executive
Engineer reduced the due amount from Rs 25,41,444/. -to Rs 2,98,371/- , we are still and requesting to
KWA to reduce the amount further. The negotiation with officials is going on in this matter. The last
communication, was made on 08.02.2020. The letter number KSHDC/G2/ MIS / 1121 / 2019-20 on the
said date, was addressed to the Managing Director, KWA to reduce the Water Charges dues. But we are
yet to receive response from KWA with regarding to our last letter for the full and final settlement of the
balance due. As the communication on the matter is still going on and the amount is not yet finalized, we
have not made the provision for the due amount of Rs 2,98,371.

60. Due to financial constraints the Corporation was not in a position to remit Gratuity/Terminal benefits to retired
employees on a timely basis. Consequently five of the retired employees approached Hon’ble  High
Court of Kerala filing  W.P.(C ) No.100/2021 and W.P (C ) No.2626/2021. Hon’ble High Court vide its  judgment
dt 08-04-2021 directed to make  remittance of terminal benefits including Gratuity adverting to the Board
Resolution No.8379 of the Corporation dt  20-02-2021. Further Hon’ble High Court directed to ensure that at
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least one or two persons from the  list of retired employees placed before the High Court are paid their
eligible retirement benefits, including gratuity every month and continue to do so, until such time as the last
person in the said list is finally paid. Since provision for Gratuity/other Terminal benefits of employees has
already   been made in the accounts in each financial year, no additional provision is required and not
provided in the accounts during the year.

61. Break-up details of exhibition expenses of Rs.3,15,574 /- (Last year Rs.2,56,294 /-) is as under in  compliance
of part II of Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013.

Stall Rent / Lease Rent / Shed / Stall Decoration 90,548 1,48,000
Publicity Expenses 22,834 16,000
Freight charges, Bundling Charges etc. 39,475 9,800
Stationery 16,873 1,090
Staff Welfare Expenses 3,965 384
Wages 1,31,255 67,200
Conveyance/Travelling Expenses 2,930
Sweeping Charges 1,400 500
Hire charges & Rack Fitting charges 790 5,040
Risk Allowance 2,350
Inauguration Expenses 400
Electricity charges 2,742 7,880
Miscellaneous expenses 412

TOTAL 3,15,574 2,56,294
62. Government of Kerala considering the heritage aspect of old Regional building has taken necessary

steps for  declaring the old Regional building as protected monument as per the provisions of the Kerala
Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Sites and Remains Act 1968(26 of 1969)
Further developments related to conservation of properly for Museum purposed were informed to Industrial
Department, Government of Kerala. Further in the Memorandum of Understanding(MoU) entered in to
between the Corporation and the Department of Museums and Zoos, it is specifically mentioned that
ownership of the old Regional Office building will remain vested with the Corporation.

63. Since the Companies Act-2013 in force, necessary amendments /Changes are made in the books of
accounts to comply with the various provisions there in.

64. In the opinion of the Board of Directors all the assets other than fixed assets and non-current investments
have value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are
stated in the Balance sheet.

65. The Balance sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statements, Statement of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes forms an integral part of the financial statements, of the
company for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Particulars 2021-22
R

2020-21
R
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To
The members of KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD., 
Report on the standalone Financial Statements

QUALIFIED OPINION
We have audited the financial statements of KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION LTD.,(“The Company”), which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow statement and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner sorequired and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, and Lossand it’s cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION
1. The company has given term loan of Rs. 20,20,000/- and other loans of Rs. 1,90,60,998/- to its subsidiary

company M/s Kerala Garments Limited. Interest on loan amounting to Rs. 2,64,93,111 is provided upto
2009-10. The subsidiary company has stopped its operation on 09/01/2007 and its net worth is negative
as per the last audited financial statement of the year 2020-21. However the company has not made
provision for loan given and interest due thereon. This has resulted in understatement of Rs. 4,75,74,109/
- in Accumulated loss (under Reserves and Surplus) and overstatement of Long term Loans and advances
to the extent of Rs. 20,20,000/-, Short term loans and advances to extent of Rs. 1,90,60,998/- and Other
current assets to the extent of Rs.2,64,93,111.

2. The company has not made provision for loans given to Weavers Industrial Cooperative Societies and
to individual weavers amounting to Rs. 1,09,20,691/- included under the head Long term loans and
advances and interest receivable thereon Rs. 1,88,29,691/-included under other current assets (Other
interest receivable), which is due for recovery from several years back. This has resulted in understatement
of Rs. 2,97,50,382/- in Accumulated loss(under Reserves and Surplus) and overstatement of Long term
loans and advances to the extent of Rs. 1,09,20,691/-and other current assets to the extent of Rs.
1,88,29,691/-.

3. The company has not made provision for advances amounting to Rs. 13,23,421/- included under the
head Short term loans and advances being amount of advance to Societies pending for recovery for
several years and without acknowledgment of debt. This has resulted in understatement of Rs. 13,23,421/
-in in Accumulated loss(under Reserves and Surplus) and overstatement of Short term loans and advances
to the extent of Rs. 13,23,421/-.

4. Investment in Kerala Garments Ltd, its subsidiary company whose net worth fully eroded and stopped
its operation in 09-01-2007, is carried at Rs. 48,00,000/- in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022. We
were unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence about the carrying amount of the investment in Kerala
Garments Ltd as at March 31, 2022. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments
to these amounts were necessary.

5. Building Tax of Rs 31,84,726/- demanded by the Trivandrum Corporation from 2010-11 onwards as per
the notes on accounts No 59 (f) is not provided in the books of accounts. The company has not filed any
appeal against the tax demanded and cannot be considered as contingent liability. This has resulted in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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understatement of in Accumulated loss(under Reserves and Surplus) to the extent of Rs. 31,84,726/-and
understatement of Other current liabilities.

6. The Vat liability on sale of Textile amounting to Rs. 19,03,694/- with interest is payable to the Commercial
Tax Department for the financial year 2015-16 is not provided in the books of accounts. This has resulted
in understatement of Accumulated loss(under Reserves and Surplus) to the extent of Rs. 19,03,694/-
and understatement of Other current liabilities.

7. Job Work charges payable to Weavers were liable for Reverse Charge under GST regime during the
period 01 July 2017 to 13 October 2017 vide Notification No. 38/2017. The Reverse Charge liability on
Job work charge payable for the period July 2017 - September 2017 works out to Rs.9,55,934/-
(Rs.1,91,18,688/-@ 5%). The remaining charges payable from 01st October 2017 to 13th October 2017
could not be quantified. The company has paid Rs. 5,70,160/- and the balance payable Rs. 3,85,774/- is
not provided in books of accounts. This has resulted in understatement of in Accumulated loss (under
Reserves and Surplus)to the extent of Rs.3,85,774/-  and understatement of Other current liabilities.

8. The loan amount outstanding to Rs. 17,29,47,341 received from Government of Kerala prior to 31/03/
2020 were classified and disclosed under the head long term borrowings.Due to the lack of information
regarding the amount which is currently due for payment the correctness of the disclosure as term loan
and as current maturity of long term debts could not be verified. An amount of Rs. 4,23,230 has been
classified as secured against current asset but no confirmation has been obtained regarding the same.
Interest accrued and payable for the above mentioned loan to the tune of  Rs. 44,09,72,428.43 has been
provided in the books of accountsas payable as on 31.03.2022. Current year interest has been worked
out at the rate which is usually being provided. Sufficient evidence were not made available for verification
to confirm the rate of interest.

9. Handloom products also includes goods which attracts the rate of 12% under GST.However the corporation
has resolved in its 338th meeting held on 03.09.2019 that in case of GST sales greater than Rs.1000, GST
shall be collected at the rate of 5% from the customers and balance liability of 7% should be paid out of
corporation fund. It is observed on our verification that corporation has paid GST to the government to
the extent of 5% only on sale of fabrics. No provision has seen created in the books of accounts for the
balance unpaid amount.

10. The company is engaged in the sale of goods which are both exempt and taxable. Rule 42 of CGST
Rules 2017, prescribes that input tax credit availed proportionate to exempt sale should be
reversed.However it is observed that, the company is availing the entire input tax credit and the same
has been utilized to discharge the GST liability which is against the provisions of the Act. The excess
input tax credit availed has to be worked outand has to be reversed. Hence the duties and taxes under
short term loans and advances amounting to Rs.58,79,826/- is overstated to that extent.

11. Presently the company is issuing yarn for the weavers for weaving and at the time of receipt of the cloth
from the weavers the amount of weaving charges paid is debited to the purchase account. Since the
same is a job work of weaving, the actual weaving charges paid should be debited separately to
weaving charges account and the provision of section 194C of the Income Tax Act, 1961 regarding tax
deducted at source is applicable for the above payments. However, the company has not deducted tax
at source on the job work charges paid.

12. The salary payable as per the books of accounts as on 31.03.2022 is Rs. 15,19,374 /- However as per
the acquaintance register maintained by the company, the salary payable is Rs. 17,13,498/-. The difference
is not reconciled by the company.
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13. There is a difference of Rs. 19,469/- between the wages payable as on 31.03.2022 and wages payable
as per the wages register maintained at the company. The difference is not reconciled by the company.

14. As per the policy of the company, in cases where new assets are purchased and the value exceeds Rs.
5000/-, the company is required to call for quotation from different vendors. However in respect of the
following asset additions made at Kannur RO no quotation is seen obtained.
a. 22/12/2021 –  Furniture and Fittings Rs. 8,000/-
b. 31/03/2022 –  Furniture and Fittings Rs. 9,500/-

15. An amount of Rs. 70,33,339.91 is disclosed as advance paid under the head Other Current asset. This
advance includes:

a. Amounts paid to employees of the Corporation to meet various expenses on behalf of the company
b. Amount recoverable from Showroom/Centre in charges in cases where stock deficit or any excess fund

disbursement is being reported.
Out of the above amount, Rs. 44,49,894.66 pertains to payments made upto 31/03/2021which still remains
unadjusted against any expense as on 31.03.2022 and 45,281.50 paid during the year 2021-22 for which
expense is not yet accounted.
The company has not made provision for advances which are doubtful for recovery. Since sufficient
audit evidence were not made available, we could not quantify the effect of the same in the financial
statement.

16. Balance confirmation has not been obtained in respect of the Following Treasury SB Accounts.
a. District Co-operative Bank – Current Account No. 52
b. District Treasury Kannur
c. District Treasury Kasaragod
d. District Treasury Malappuram
e. District Treasury Thamarassery
f. District Treasury Wayanad

17. No confirmation or age wise split up is received in respect of Security deposit paid amounting to
Rs. 21,62,372/- as on 31.03.2022

18. Few receipts in bank amounting to Rs. 35,22,489.57 received during the year 2021-22 is recorded as
unidentified credits in bank under the head other current liability. Since the nature of receipt is not yet
identified by the company, the financial impact of the same could not be ascertained.

19. As per the Accounting Standard – 2 on Valuation of Inventory issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI), the closing inventory should be valued at Cost or Net Realizable value
whichever is lower. However as per the policy followed by the Company, the carrying cost of finished
goods are determined by reducing from the sales value a certain percentage of gross margin. The
gross margin of 32.5% in case of first quality cloth material and 60% in case of seconds material is
followed consistently at by the company during the last year.
During the previous year 2020-21, the gross profit margin of the company was 19.53% and during the
current year it has dropped to (–) 10.94 %.  Therefore valuing the closing stock of finished goods at a
sales price less gross profit margin during the year 2021-22 is totally wrong.

20. Balance confirmation certificate of Other Current Liabilities, Trade Receivables, Trade payable, Long
Term loans and Advances were not available for our verification.

21. As per the Balance confirmation obtained from NHDC, the balance of the company in their books of
accounts is Rs. 50,93,689.20 whereas in the books of the company the total amount payable(Net of
Subsidy receivable) to NHDC is only Rs. 8,42,773.51 Hence there is a difference of Rs. 42,50,915.69.
The difference has not been reconciled by the company.
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22. No provision is seen made for long pending advance accounts appearing in the name of employees
and others under the head other current assets which is the amount to be recovered.

23. The company is liable to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements incorporating the audited financial
statements of the Subsidiary Company Kerala Garments Ltd as per Section 129 (3) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Hence the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 is not complied with.

24. The Share application money Rs.9.33 crores appearing as per note No. 3 represents share capital
contribution received from the Govt. of Kerala pending to be allotted. The company has received share
application money over and above the authorized capital of Rs. 50,00,00,000/- contravening the provisions
of section 42 of the Companies Act,2013.

25. The company has not provided for interest payable to the Government of Kerala for the various loan
amounting Rs. 288.99 lakhs availed for the period up to 1995-96 and the interest and penal interest for
the period worked out by the company is Rs. 492.98 lakhs which has resulted in understatement of
reserves and surplus and other liabilities.

26. The audited annual accounts for the financial year 2020-21 is not yet adopted by the Annual General
Meeting of the company.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualifiedopinion.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER PARAGRAPHS AND OTHER MATTER PARAGRAPHS
Other Matter

We draw attention to observation made by us in the paragraph 1 to 10 of “Annexure A” attached. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditor’s professional judgment, were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period. As the company is not listed company this
clause is not applicable.

OTHER INFORMATION
a) The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

b) Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

c) In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

d) If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

a) The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

b) In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

c) The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

b) A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in “Annexure
B” of this Auditors report.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“The Order”), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “ Annexure C “ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extend applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books
c) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in agreement with

the books of account.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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e) As per the Notification No. GSR(E) of the Ministry of Corporate  Affairs dated 05-06-2015, Disqualification
of the Directors stated under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company,
since it is a Government Company.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure D”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were

any material foreseeable losses.
c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund by the Company.
d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

• provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

• directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

• provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (d)(i) and (d)(ii) contain any material misstatement

e. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly reporting on
the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the year under
consideration.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, As
per the Notification No. GSR(E) of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 05-06-2015, section 197 is not
applicable to a government company.

4. We have complied with the directions u/s 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and its impact on the
Accounts and Financial Statements is not material. Our observations on the directions u/s 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in “Annexure E”.

Place: Kannur
Date: 1/11/2022

P.J.REGI, FCA, D.I.S.A (ICAI)
Partner

(Membership No.209836)

For GEORGE& REGI
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.009022S

                Sd/-

UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218
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ANNEXURE -A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF
KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD

as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Referred to in our report of even date)

1. The company has valued the stock of finished goods at retail margin method without considering the
age of the stock and realizable value. Hence we are unable to express the correctness of valuation of
finished goods. The Yarn, Dyes, Chemicals and stores items are valued at cost less subsidy receivable
and are accordance with the normally accepted accounting principle.

2. The inventory as on 31-03-2022 does not include damaged yarn costing Rs. 12,800.20/- and Cutbits
valued at cost amounting to Rs.1,01,99,724.70/-. The realizable value of these itemsare not available,
we are not in a position to quantify the effect on the financial statements.

3. No provision is created for slow/ non-moving finished goods, raw materials and age-wise stockdetails
are not available. We are not in a position to quantify the effect on financial statements.

4. The company has not maintained proper records showing utilization of grant / loan sanctioned under
various schemes. The various grant received from Government as appearing in the Current liabilities
Rs. 46,44,30,308/-as on 31-03-2022 is seen not reconciled with the balance held against the above
fund. We are not able to verify whether the grants are utilized for the purpose for which it is granted.

5. According to Companies Accounting Standard (AS) 15 “Employees Benefit”, provision for leave
encashment should be made on the basis of Actuarial Valuation but the company made provision for
leave encashment on its own calculation on the basis of assumption that existing employees are
entitled to their earned leave at the year end.

6. The details of deferred income amounting to Rs. 13,27,039.39/-included under the Reserves and
surplus (Note no 2) is not available with the company. The Company has not recognized any part of
deferred income in the profit or loss account and has been carrying the same amount as from the
previous financial year.

7. No interest has been provided on loan amount of Rs. 6,04,376/-availed from SBI and other Nationalised
Banks on behalf of weavers under DRI scheme. We are unable to quantify the interest as no records
are made available to us.

8. Other current liabilities include Thrift Fund balance - Rs. 2,14,17,808/-, the control account balance in
ledger is seen not tallied with schedule of balances weavers accounts at the yearend.

9. As per information provided by the management, Government of Kerala vide letter No. 16646/C1/13/
1D dated 01-03-2014 has directed to not to refer the Corporation to BIFR (NCLT).

Place: Kannur
Date: 1/11/2022

P.J.REGI, FCA, D.I.S.A (ICAI)
Partner

(Membership No.209836)

For GEORGE& REGI
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.009022S

Sd/-

UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF
KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

I Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

II Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. U/s.143(3)(i) of the 2013, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

III Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

IV Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

V Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Referred to in our report of even date)

Place: Kannur
Date: 1/11/2022

P.J.REGI, FCA, D.I.S.A (ICAI)
Partner

(Membership No.209836)

39th Annual Report & Accounts 2006-07

For GEORGE& REGI
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.009022S

Sd/-

UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF
KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD

as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Referred to in our report of even date)

56

1) Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is maintaining

property , plant and equipment and intangible assets  Register at Head Office and its Regional Offices
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property , plant and equipment
and intangible assets. Further certain details as regards date of purchase, date of put into use, location,
identification etc. of some movable tangible assets needs to be updated. Location details and area of
freehold land, factory and office building needs to be updated in the fixed asset register and needs to
be reconciled with revenue records maintained by the local authority and latest land and building tax
paid should be kept with original title deeds.

b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the management during
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us and as examined by us, there is a
regular programme of verification which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its assets. The physically verified fixed assets items are seen not reconciled
with plant and equipment and intangible assets register.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, all the
immovable properties of land and building disclosed in the financial statements are in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date. However Title deeds of freehold land for Rs. 46.07 lakhs and
the title deed of Office building and factory building with WDV amounting Rs 15.24 lakhs as on 31-03-
2022 were not available for verification

d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use asset) during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3
(i) (e) of the Order is not applicable.

2) Inventories
a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the management has conducted

physical verification of finished goods, raw materials, stores, packing materials at the year-end only. In
our opinion the frequency of verification has to be increased based on experiences of discrepancy/
fraud reported in the past in showrooms and at regional stores of the company. The discrepancy
noticed on verification between physical stock and book records were material and same has been
properly dealt with in the books of accounts

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of
time during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

3) a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has made
investments  in  and granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured and unsecured to its
subsidiaryand other parties.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of accounts
and records produced before us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
state that:
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A) Loan to Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associates
Loans

 Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year
 Subsidiaries  Rs .1.49 lakhs
 Joint Venture     -
 Associate     -

 Balance Outstanding as at Balance Sheet Date
 Subsidiaries  Rs. 210.81 lakhs
 Joint Venture       -
 Associate       -

B) Loan to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the rate of interest and other
terms and conditions of loan given to subsidiary company are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of
the company. However, it is noticed that no loan agreement is seen executed for the outstanding loan of
Rs. 1,90,60,998 /- given to Kerala Garments Ltd, and no interest is charged on the loan amounts from the
financial year 2007-08 onwards. The interest not charged for the year 2007-08 to 2021-22 on working
capital loan is worked out by the company is Rs 3,04,99,694/-. Similarly on the term loan of Rs. 20,20,000/
- no interest is provided in books from the financial year 2009-2010 onwards since the company stopped
its operation from 09-01-2007. The interest on term loan for the period 2009-10 to 2021-22 not provided in
books of accounts worked out by the company is Rs. 1,00,70,572/-.

c) The repayment of loan granted to Kerala Garments limited are not regular.According to the information
and explanation given to us, the company has taken steps for recovery of principal and interest from
the subsidiary company. The schedule of repayment of principal or interest has not been stipulated
and we have not obtained any loan agreement for verification.

d) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, no loan agreement has been
executed or no terms or conditions has been stipulated to report whether the amount of loan is overdue
as on 31.03.2022.

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there are no loan or advance
in the nature of loan granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

f) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has granted the
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms
or period of repayment aggregating to Rs. 1.49 Lakhs during the year. (100 % of the total loans and
advances in the nature of loans granted during the year). The aggregate of loans granted to related
parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 is Rs.210.81 Lakhs

4) In our opinion  and  according to information and explanation given to us, the company has compiled
with requirements of section 185 and 186 in respect of investments made by it during the year.

5) In our opinion and according to  information  and explanation given to us, the Company has complied
with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the applicable provisions of Sections 73 to 76
and other relevant provisions of the Act and the, Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) as aplicable, with regard to the deposits accepted from shareholders.

6) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of the company and accordingly paragraph 3 (vi) of
the order is not applicable.

Amount in Rs.
Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year Nil
Balance Outstanding as at Balance Sheet Date 109.20 lakhs
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7) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:
a) Amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including

goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have
been generally regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. Details of statutory
dues which were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable are mentioned in Annexure 1 of this Annexure.

b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited on account of
dispute are given in Annexure 2 to this Annexure.

8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions
not recorded in the books of account  that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during  the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of
the Order is not applicable

9) Loans and Other Borrowings
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has defaulted in

repayment of dues of Secured and unsecured loans from government and DRI loan. We have
not obtained the terms and conditions of the loan received by the Company and hence the
period of default and amount due as on 31.03.2022 could not be verified.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans obtained
during the year were applied for the purpose for which they were availed.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.
f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not

raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

10) IPO  and Preferential Allotment
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

11) Fraud and Whistle Blower Complaints
a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud

by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been noticed or reported
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) Since there is no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has
been noticed or reported during the year, paragraph 3 (xi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-
blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year.

12) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, Paragraphs 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.
13) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

undertaken all transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in financial statement as
required by the applicable accounting standard.

14) Internal Audit System
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an

internal audit system, commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
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b) The reports of the internal auditors for the year under audit were considered by us, as part of our audit
procedures.

15) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph
3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16) Registration under section 45-IA of RBI Act, 1934
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the Group. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

17) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 1,004.57 lakhs in the financial year and
Rs. 491.41 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

18) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

19) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the board of
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of  balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

20) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other than
ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII
to the Act.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amount
remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, to
be transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of
the said Act.

21) The company is liable to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements incorporating the audited financial
statements of the Subsidiary Company Kerala Garments Ltd as per Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act,
2013. Since the Audit of the subsidiary company, Kerala Garments Limited is not completed, the company
has not prepared the consolidated financial statements and hence qualifications or adverse remarks in
respect of the subsidiary company is not incorporated in our report.

Place: Kannur
Date: 1/11/2022    S   d/-

P.J.REGI, FCA, D.I.S.A (ICAI)
Partner

(Membership No.209836)

For GEORGE& REGI
 Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.009022S

UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218

59



5660 39th Annual Report & Accounts 2006-07

Name of statue Nature of the dues Amount
Rs.

Period to
which the
amount
relates

Due
date

Date of
payment Remarks

Property Tax

Employees State
Insurance Act,1948

31,84,726.00
2010-11 To

2020-21
Half

Yearly

The amount relating to
Head office employee
contribution deducted
but not remitted in ESI

23,066.51 2000-01 To
2021-22

15th of
next

month

The books of
accounts are not
r e c o n c i l e d
periodically with
o u t s t a n d i n g
balance to pay

Employees State
Insurance Act,1948

The amount relating to
Kannur region employee
contribution deducted
but not remitted in ESI

1,19,698.54
2000-01 To

2021-22
15th of
next

month

The books of
accounts are not
r e c o n c i l e d
periodically with
o u t s t a n d i n g
balance to pay

Employees State
Insurance Act,1948

The amount relating to
Trivandrum region
employee contribution
deducted but not
remitted in ESI

14,312.93 2000-01 To
2021-22

15th of
next

month

The books of
accounts are not
r e c o n c i l e d
periodically with
o u t s t a n d i n g
balance to pay

Employees State
Insurance Act,1948

The amount relating to
Ernakulam region
employee contribution
deducted but not
remitted in ESI

3,805.12 Details of
Period of
default not
available

15th of
next

month

The books of
accounts are not
r e c o n c i l e d
periodically with
o u t s t a n d i n g
balance to pay

The Kerala Labour
Welfare Fund Act,1975

Labour welfare fund
deducted from
employee but not
remitted to the authority

4,004.00
Details of
Period of

default not
available

15th

January

The amount payable to
Trivandrum Corporation
in respect building
No.TC52/2641(1)

KVAT Act,2003

CGST Act,2017

VAT output not collected
from customers and not
paid to commercial tax
department

Reverse charge
payable on job work

charges

19,03,694.00

3,85,774.00

2015-16

2017-18
20th of
next

month

20th of
next

month

AAAAKer S

ANNEXURE-1
STATEMENT OF ARREARS OF STATUTORY DUES OUTSTANDING FOR 

MORE THAN SIX MONTHS AS ON 31st MARCH,2022
REFERRED IN PARA (7)(a) TO THE ANNEXURE A TO AUDITORS REPORT
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“Annexure D” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of
even date on the  Financial Statements of

KERALA STATE HANDLOOM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD  (“The Company”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KERALA STATE HANDLOOM
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD, (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
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purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Place: Kannur
Date: 1/11/2022

  Sd/-
P.J.REGI, FCA, D.I.S.A (ICAI)

Partner
(Membership No.209836)

For GEORGE& REGI
 Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.009022S

UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218
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Sl.
No. Details/ Directions Auditors  Comment

1

2

3

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If yes, the implications of
processing of accounting transactions outside
IT system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any, may
be stated.

Most of the transactions are processed
manually at inception and then fed into
accounting software. Transactions in various
showrooms under the Company are compiled
manually and then fed into the system.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender
to the company due to the company’s inability
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a
Government company, then this direction is
also applicable for statutory auditor of lender
company).

There is no restructuring of an existing loan
or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/
interest reported during the financial year.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/
receivable for specific schemes from Central/
State Government or its agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

The company has not maintained proper
records showing utilization of grant / loan
sanctioned under various schemes. The
balances in books as Grant received have not
been reconciled with the balance
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“Annexure E” to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date of Kerala State Handloom
Development Corporation as at 31st March 2022.

Direction under sub section (5) of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013.

  For GEORGE& REGI
  Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Reg. No.009022S
 Sd/-

 P.J.REGI, FCA, D.I.S.A (ICAI)
 Partner

       (Membership No.209836) 
 UDIN : 22209836BBRCCL2218 
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Sl.
No. Details/ Directions Auditor’s Reply

1

2

Sector Specific sub-directions under section 143(5) of the
companies Act, 2013: Manufacturing Sector

3

4

5

Whether the Company’s pricing policy absorbs
all fixed and variable cost of production as well
as the allocation of overheads?

No proper costing method exists to ascertain the
cost of production and for fixing the selling price
and to absorbs all fixed and variable cost of
production as well as the allocation of overheads.

Whether the company has utilized the
Government assistance for technology up
gradation/ modernization of its manufacturing
process and timely submitted the utilization
certificates.

The company has not utilized the amount
received during the year for technology
upgradation/ modernization of its manufacturing
process.

Whether the company has fixed norms for
normal losses and a system for evaluation of
abnormal losses for remedial actions is in
existence.

The company has no fixed norms for normal loss
and a system for evaluation of abnormal losses
exist.

What is the system of valuation of by- products
and finished products? List out the cases of
deviation from its declared policy.

The company values the stock of finished goods in retail
margin method deducting the margin of 32.50 % from
the selling price in case of First Quality material and
60% in case of Seconds material.During the previous
year 2020-21, the gross profit margin of the company
was 19.53% and during the current year it has dropped
to (–) 10.94 %.  Therefore valuing the closing stock of
finished goods at a sales price less gross profit margin
during the year 2021-22 is totally wrong.

Whether the effect of deteriorated stores and
spares of closed units been properly
accounted for in the books.

No manufacturing units has been closed during
the year.

Whether the company has an effective system
for physical Verification, valuation of stock,
treatment of non-moving items and accounting
the effect of shortage/excess noticed during
the physical verification.

The procedure of physical verification of inventory
is done at the end of the Year. Non-moving items
are not identified at the time of physical
verification. Shortage/excess of stock noticed
was accounted properly. Age wise stock details
are not ascertained

6

7 State the extent of utilization of plant and
machinery during the year vis-a-vis installed
capacity.

No proper records of utilization of machinery
Hours and its productivity details are available.
The company is seen utilized outside facility for
the printing its own fabrics.

Report on the cases of discounts/commission
in regard to debtors and creditors where the
company has deviated from its laid
Down policy.

No such deviation in policy for discounts/
commission in regard to debtors and creditors
noticed during the year.

8
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to 105 (6) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 19 (3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014]

CIN : U74140KL1968SGC002181
Name of the company : Kerala State Handloom Development Corporation Ltd.
Registered office : Kannur
Name of the member (s) :
Registered address :
E-mail Id :
Folio No./Client Id :
DP ID :
I/We, being the member (s) of ............................................................................. shares of the above named Company, hereby
appiont
1. Name ...................................................................
Address  :

E-mail Id  :
Signature :........................................, or failing him

2. Name ......................................................................
Address :

E-mail Id :
Signature :...................................................................
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 54th Adjourned Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday  18th March 2023 at  03:30  P.M. at Kannur and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
Resolution No.
1.
2.
3.

         Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note : This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, note less than 48 hour before the commencement of the Meeting.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this ................... day of ....................................... 2023
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